
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 15 March 2018 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester



Date Published: 8 March 2018     



Date Published: 8 March 2018     

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 15 March 2018

2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.  Questions can be asked on the day or 
sent to the Clerk before the meeting.  A written answer will be provided if 
questions are received 3 clear working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Chairman will advise timescale for any questions asked on 
the day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the 
meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2018 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

5  HIGH NEEDS Stewart King

6  CAPITAL (Pages 11 - 14) Gareth Vine

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS PARTNERSHIP CONSULTATION 
(Pages 15 - 30)

To consider the attached consultation paper.

Stewart King

8  F40 Stewart King

(a) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Forum
:01452 324197/e-mail: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Date Published: 8 March 2018     

(b) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.



1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 11 January 2018

in the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

Present:

Colin Belford - Secondary School Headteachers
Penny Chislett - Post-16 Education
Martin Doidge - Primary School Governors
Graham Doswell - Primary School Governors
Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools
Andrew Harris - Secondary Head Teachers
Gillian Hayward - Secondary School Governors
Amanda Horniman - Early Years Providers
Dan Johnson - Primary School Headteachers
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers
Gwyneth Keen - Early Years Providers
Karen Lewis - Primary Head Teachers
Ian Marshall - Primary School Governors
Sara Morris - Primary School Governors
Marie Owen - Special School Governors
Susan Padfield - Secondary School Governors
Steve Savory - Primary Head Teachers
Stuart Wilson - Secondary Head Teachers

Also in 
attendance:

Clare Steel, Gloucestershire Association of Special School 
Headteachers

Observers: Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member: Children and Young People

Officers: Tim Browne, Head of Education
Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and 
Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manger, Schools, Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner
John Reilly, Specialist Adviser (High Needs)
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the 
Forum.

Apologies: Melissa Bradshaw, Special School Headteacher
Rachel Howie, Gloucester Diocese
Elizabeth Knox, Secondary School Governors
Will Morgan, Secondary School Headteachers

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Rosy Savory, Clifton Diocese
Andrew Steward, Trade Unions

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

2. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.  

3. MINUTES 

3.1 The minutes of the previous meeting of 20 October 2017 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

3.2 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, 
agreed to circulate the existing guidance on Multi Academy Trusts and other forms 
of collaborations to the working group for initial comments.
ACTION: Stewart King.

3.3 Colin Belford, Secondary (Maintained) headteacher representative, confirmed that a 
meeting had not taken place with representatives of the Local Enterprise 
Partnership, to discuss opportunities for work-based training for young people, 
particularly those at risk of exclusion, and for capital investment.

3.4 The Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, explained that 
he had consulted with Chris Widden, Chair of the Gloucestershire Governors’ 
Association (GGA), on how the GGA could assist with the consultation on the 
funding formula for 2018/19.  It had been agreed that the consultation meetings 
would be arranged by GCC, but that a GGA representative would have a slot to 
draw attention to the GGA consultation on future networking of governors.  A 
meeting was taking place on Monday 15 January 2018.

4. GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET CONSULTATION 2018/19 

4.1 Sue Hall, Finance Business Partner, introduced the report, which outlined the 
budget strategy and draft details for 2018/19, and the medium term financial 
strategy covering the period 2018/19 to 2020/21. The Forum noted that full details 
of the draft budget for 2018/19, and the Medium Term Financial Strategy for the 
period covering 2018/19 to 2020/21, were presented to Cabinet on 13 December 
2017. 

4.2 The Forum received a presentation which outlined the proposed changes to the 
Children and Families budget, plus the cost pressures and the risk and challenges.   
(For Information – A copy of the slides has been uploaded to the Council’s website 
and is included in the signed minute book).

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

4.3 The Finance Business Partner explained that it was proposed that Children and 
Families achieve cost reductions of £0.89M and receive cost increases of £11.36M, 
a net increase in budget of £10.47M.  She explained that the investment being 
proposed was in recognition of the pressures on the Vulnerable Children and 
Young People element of the budget during 2017/18, which was forecast an 
overspend of £9.38M before the application of reserves.   

4.4 During the presentation particular reference was made to:

4.4.1 A sum of £7.69M of additional investment to meet the cost and demand pressures 
related to External Placements Budgets, ensuring the most appropriate placements 
for the increasing numbers of children in care.  Members of the Forum 
acknowledged however that the amount allowed in the investment for increases in 
children in care and the provision of external placements allowed little flexibility for 
numbers to increase further and the cost of this to be covered. It was explained that 
investment and changes in practice elsewhere within social care e.g. in-house 
fostering capacity, IRIS , should assist in mitigating the risks.

4.4.2 Additional investment for Adoption, Special Guardianship and Fostering Allowances 
and additional fostering staff.

4.4.3 Additional investment to provide support to care leavers until the age of 25, 
following the implementation of new legislation. 

4.4.4 Addition investment for Child Protection chairs to meet the increased demand.

4.4.5 The activities being undertaken to improve performance resulting from the Ofsted 
judgement.  A member commented that they would have expected to have seen 
funding made available to pick up the continuing costs of the impact of the Ofsted 
judgement even if this was just one-off costs in 2018/19.

4.5 A member of the Forum raised the question of whether additional funding was 
being made available to fund what was likely to be a 2% pay award in addition to 
the 1.5% already allowed for.  It was confirmed that funding increases above a 
1.5% pay award would be considered as part of the revised budget to Cabinet in 
January. 

4..6 The Forum acknowledged that the Council was setting a budget within a 
challenging funding environment and was overall supportive of the budget proposal.

4.7 The Forum was informed that the Council’s budget consultation survey would run 
until 17 January 2018. Final approval of the budget would be considered at the 
Cabinet meeting on 31 January 2018 and at the Full Council meeting on 14 
February 2018.

5. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 2018/19 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

5.1 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, 
presented the report which outlined the implications of the announcements on the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for 2018/19.

5.2 The Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, informed the 
Forum that there had been some key developments since the Forum had agreed 
the recommended approach to the local schools formula for 2018/19 at its meeting 
on 20 October 2018.  The DfE had issued a revised dataset based on the October 
2017 school census, and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) had 
announced some rule changes to allow different methods of calculation to be used 
in the Authority Proforma Tool.  

5.3 The DfE had also announced the DSG for each authority for 2018/19.  
Gloucestershire’s position was that there would be an increase of £14.8M (3.5%) 
from the current 2017/18 DSG, amounting to a total of £441.7M for 2018/19.

5.4 Members were informed that the formula had been subsequently revised, to take 
account of those changes, but it remained within the spirit of the Forum’s previously 
recommended formula.  Officer’s explained that Gloucestershire’s proposed formula 
now used the revised dataset, factor rates 100% equivalent to those stated for the 
National Funding Formula (NFF) and delivered the minimum pupil allocations of 
£3,300 for primary and £4,600 for secondary.  

5.5 Officers emphasised however that the final totals used in the formula still differed to 
those in the illustrative NFF issued by the DfE, as local authorities were not able to 
fully replicate the NFF.  One member asked for clarification on how it was possible 
that some schools would see gains to their budget in excess of the 3% increase 
mentioned in Justine Greenings statement.  In response, Neil Egles, Finance 
Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital, explained that even in the DfE’s NFF 
formula some schools showed increases above 3% due to the fact the NFF had 
three different capping methods, of which only one was based on 3% and the other 
two allowed increases in excess of 3%.  He added that Gloucestershire had to use 
the formula rules allowed within the ESFA’s Authority Proforma Tool (APT), this did 
not allow multiple capping methods like the NFF. A single capping percentage had 
therefore been used in the APT and set at the level needed to balance to the school 
block delegated budget total available. He explained that the minimum per pupil 
funding level was also not subject to the gains cap.  Both of those factors had 
meant the cap percentage had been able to be set above the 3% level.

5.6 The Finance Manger made the point that not all local authorities wanted to move as 
close to the NFF as possible; the decision was influenced by the funding history 
and culture in each area.

5.7 Officers drew the Forum’s attention to Annex C of the report which outlined the level 
of primary and secondary units of funding used in the 2018/19 Schools Block of the 
DSG.  Officers explained that this was useful in that it showed that there were still 
big gaps between the funding level of the top, middle and lowest funded authorities.  

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

This clearly demonstrated that fair funding had not been achieved; attributed in part 
to the slow transition to the full implementation of the NFF.

5.8 The Forum noted that the announced Schools Block funding has been adjusted for 
the previously agreed de-delegation amounts, set out in the report, and the 
retention of £0.966M for the Schools Growth Fund, to arrive at a total for inclusion 
in the Authority Proforma Tool for delegation to schools in 2018/19 of £347.459M.

5.9 The Forum recommended Council agree the revised 2018/19 formula as set out at 
Annex B to the report for submission to the ESFA. 

5.10 The Forum was informed that the total for the Early Years Block for 2018/19 was 
£33.186M.  This represented an increase in funding of £3.126M relating to the full 
year effect of the additional 15 hours entitlement for eligible working parents, which 
commenced September 2017. 

5.11 Gwyneth Keen and Amanda Horniman, the Forum’s Early Years Providers 
representatives, asked for assurances that the quality supplement would be de-
delegated to support Early Years providers.  Tim Browne, Head of Education, 
explained that the Early Years Team was being restructured, with service provision 
all being brought together in one location.  The supplement would go towards 
funding the Early Years Team to deliver support and advice to providers.  He would 
be meeting with the Head of Education, Outcomes and Intervention, to agree a 
basis for the Council being accountable to the funding.  He added that more 
information would be available shortly, and providers would be updated at the next 
Provider Forum. 

5.12 The Forum recommended Council agree:
 To set the target for Early Years central costs at the maximum level (5% in 

2018/19).  
 To the hourly rates for 2, 3, and 4-year olds to remain at the same level as 

2017/18.
 To the quality supplement (£0.02 per hour) being de-delegated to the Local 

Authority to enable all providers to have access to advice and information on 
quality standards.

5.13 Officers explained that following an update in the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency Operational Guide on redetermination of budgets where pupils had been 
excluded, there would be a change in the way Gloucestershire dealt with changes 
and transfers of funds relating to permanently excluded pupils. Taking effect from 1 
April 2018, the change meant that any calculations relating to the funding transfers 
for permanently excluded pupils would only relate to the financial year in which the 
pupil was excluded.  Members of the Forum expressed concern that funding 
transfers to schools taking in excluded pupils would only relate to the proportion of 
the financial year remaining, so from the official date of exclusion to the 31 March.  
The Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, informed 
members that he would be writing to the DfE regarding exclusion funding and he 
agreed to convey the Forum’s concerns.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

ACTION: Stewart King

6. HIGH NEEDS 

6.1 The Forum received a report which outlined the block funding for 2018/19, the High 
Needs budget for 2017/18 and 2018/19, and provided an update on the High Needs 
Programme.

6.2 The Forum was informed that the High Needs block total for 2018/19 was 
£57.567M.  The forecast for 2017/18 showed a projected overspend of £1.2M.  
Dedicated Schools Grant balances to support High Needs at 31 March 2018 stood 
at around £2.1M.  Officers emphasised that it was inevitable that there would need 
to be a future draw on balances to support the 2018/19 budget.  

6.3 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, 
explained that the new approach to High Needs was being developed in the context 
of increasing demand and to meet needs more effectively with less money in real 
terms.  He was working with John Reilly, Specialist Adviser High Needs, on 
emphasising the risks to the High Needs budget, and the implications of this, to 
parents and schools, and negotiating with them on the major changes needed. The 
plan was for the changes arising from the High Needs Programme to have an 
impact from the autumn term resulting in a balanced budget being set for 2019/20.  

6.4 The Forum considered the latest update of the Programme Plan which indicated 
where attention was currently being focused.  One area currently being focused on 
was High Needs provision within Post-16 education.  A key initiative was to look at 
why the costs were out of line with other authorities. Hospital Education funding 
was also be looked into; whilst the authority provided a service judged as 
‘outstanding’, costs were well above the level of most other authorities.  Different 
approaches were being developed, such as the Restorative Practice approach at 
Tewkesbury.  The Forum was pleased to hear that this was having a positive 
impact on attendance and exclusions, and was now in the process of being 
expanded to other schools.

6.5 The Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, informed the 
Forum that a Briefing and Engagement Survey, for parents, schools and other 
stakeholders, would be sent to relevant parties, to gather views on the ideas being 
put forward on the future of High Needs.  The deadline for responses was 28 
February 2018. Any comments on this from Forum members could be sent direct to 
him.  Following a request from a member of the Forum, it was agreed there would 
be some context included in the paper, to set out the budget situation and the 
inability to move between blocks under the NFF from 2020/21.
ACTION: Stewart King

6.6 The Forum noted that formal consultation on the Strategic Plan would take place 
from May 2018, with changes phased in from September 2018.  

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

6.7 Officers explained that the High Needs budget was set to undergo a major review at 
the end of January.  The Forum would consider the budget for High Needs 2018/19 
and the medium term financial plan at its next meeting on 15 March 2018. 

7. ELECTIONS 2018 

7.1 The Forum received a report which outlined the plans for the Schools Forum 
election 2018.   

7.2 Joanne Bolton, the Clerk to the Forum, explained that the representative bodies of 
the Forum’s non-schools members had been asked to confirm their membership for 
the next term of office.  The term of office of the schools/academies members, 
outlined in the report, would end on 31 March 2018, and nominations for those 
seats would be sought from 12 January 2018.  The Secondary School Governor 
(Maintained) seat was currently vacant and would be included in the current 
election round.  The Forum noted that the deadline for return of nomination forms 
was by 5pm on 9 February 2018.  The election count for seats where an election 
had been trigged would take place on Wednesday 21 March 2018.  

7.3 The Forum noted that the Gloucestershire Association of Secondary Headteachers 
had undertaken its own nomination/election process.  Colin Belford confirmed that 
he would continue as the Forum’s Secondary (Maintained) headteacher 
representative, and Andrew Harris would continue as the Forum’s Secondary 
(Academy) Headteacher representative.  

7.4 The Clerk confirmed that the Forum would be kept up to date on each stage of the 
nomination/election process.

7.5 Following a request, it was agreed that the emails to schools seeking nominations 
would include context on the evolving role of the Forum.  From the demise of its 
decision making role on mainstream funding, to its current focus on issues which 
had key strategic and resource implications; in particular the new approach for High 
Needs. 
ACTION: Joanne Bolton.    

7.6 At this juncture Gillian Hayward,  the Chair,  informed the Forum that her term as a 
Secondary (Academy) School Governor representative, was due to come to an end 
and that she would not be standing for election again.  Therefore her membership 
to the Forum would cease at the end of her term of office  on 31 March 2018.  The 
Chair explained that she would need to send her apologies for next meeting in 15 
March 2018, so this would be her last meeting.  

7.7 Steve Savory, Primary (Academy) Headteacher representative, took the opportunity 
to speak on behalf of the Forum to pay tribute to Gillian; he spoke of her 
exceptional contribution to education and the Schools Forum over the past 
seventeen years.  On behalf of the Forum he thanked Gillian for her fantastic 
chairing skills, and her constant presence over the years.  Officers and members of 
the Forum wished her well for the future. 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

7.8 The Forum noted the report.

8. SCHOOLS FORUM WORKPLAN 2018 

8.1 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and Development, 
introduced the report which outlined the items which would require the Forum’s 
input in 2018.

8.2 The Forum noted the key priorities and the Workplan for 2018.

9. F40 

9.1 The Chair informed the Forum that the results of the f40 questionnaire on Fair 
Funding for schools had determined that f40 members felt that a fairer funding 
allocation to schools had not been achieved, and that the group should continue on 
campaigning for a fair funding deal.  A series of f40 Executive Committee meeting 
dates had been scheduled to take place over the next year, however there was 
some uncertainty about how the group would go forward given that the Chair was 
planning to retire and the secretary was planning to step down, both by the end of 
2018.

9.2 The Forum noted that the f40 group was staging a conference on the NFF, its 
implications for f40 members and how f40’s fair funding campaign should develop 
in the future.  The conference would be held on Monday 26 March 2018, in 
Westminster London.  

Chairman

Meeting concluded at 3.15 pm

Page 8



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 11 January 2018 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

1. Minutes of the previous 
meeting 20 October 2018.  

The existing guidance on Multi Academy Trusts and other 
forms of collaborations to be circulated to the working 
group for initial comments. 
 

Stewart King 
 

To be actioned w/b 12th March 

2. Dedicated Schools Grant  The Lead Commissioner for Education, Strategy and 
Development, to write to the DfE regarding exclusion 
funding, to convey the Forum’s concerns regarding the 
changes to the transfer of funds for permanently excluded 
pupils. 
 

Stewart King Letter sent and issue raised 
again with DfE 
 
 
 

3. High Needs Context on the budget situation and the inability to move 
between blocks under the NFF from 2020/21, to be added 
to the Briefing and Engagement Survey, for parents, 
schools and other stakeholders.  
 

Stewart King Not included in the paper to 
maintain readability but this 
point has been emphasised at 
all meetings, briefings etc 
including the February 
Education Conference 

4. Elections 2018 Context on the evolving role of the Forum, from the 
demise of its decision making role on mainstream funding, 
to its current focus on issues which have key strategic and 
resource implications such as High Needs, to be included 
in the emails to schools seeking nominations.  
 

Joanne Bolton Completed. 

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 Capital Spend. 

The revised annual budget for the 2017/18 Children & Families capital programme is 

£29.475 million.  The spend as at the end of January 2018 was £20.637 million.  This is 

slightly lower than forecast for this time of year mainly due to slippage on the IRIS scheme, 

as a suitable property has not yet been secured, slippage on the Paternoster School scheme 

caused by delays installing utility supplies and archaeological works taking longer than 

expected, together with delays in obtaining planning permission for the expansion works at 

Cleeve School and Beaufort Academy.   

 

The 2018/19 Children & Families Capital Programme, was approved by County Council on 

14th February 2018.  A copy of the programme is shown below. The overall budget for the 

programme is £51,195 million and is made up from Basic Need Grant from central 

government, Section 106 contributions secured from housing developments, school 

contributions and internal borrowing. 

 

2018/19 Capital Programme 

Grant

s106 

Contribution

School 

Contribution

Internal 

Borrowing Total

Capital Maintenance Programme 1,680,000 1,400,000 280,000 1,680,000

Health & Safety/accessibility etc. 800,000 800,000 800,000

Suitability bid programme 1,650,000 1,500,000 150,000 1,650,000

Basic Need provision 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000

Ashchurch Primary replace temporary classrooms 600,000 370,000 230,000 600,000

Tredington Primary additional classroom 265,000 265,000 265,000

New Secondary School, Cheltenham 30,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000 30,000,000

Cheltenham area additional primary places 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Fairford Primary expansion 2,800,000 2,050,000 750,000 2,800,000

Hunts Grove Primary temporary accom 400,000 400,000 400,000

High Needs Programme Specialist Provision 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Innsworth Infant new reception classroom 300,000 300,000 300,000

The John Moore Primary expansion 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000

51,195,000 33,320,000 2,445,000 430,000 15,000,000 51,195,000

Funding

BudgetScheme

 

Education Capital  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

15th March 2018 

Type of Decision For information 

Background 
Documents 

 N/A 

Author Gareth Vine 

Purpose of Report To update the Forum 

Key 
Recommendations 

That the position be noted 

 

Resource 
Implications 

Total grant value for the 2018/19 Children and Families Capital 
Programmes is £33,320 million 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



2. Pupil Place Planning 

 

There continues to be pressure within the school system to ensure there are sufficient school 

places available across the county.  There were a total of 13 capital schemes implemented 

for September 2017 providing nearly 200 temporary places and 75 permanent increases for 

Reception/Year 7 intake.  There continues to be growing demand for places across the 

county with the greatest pressure coming from Gloucester and Cheltenham.  This is reflected 

in the prioritisation of schemes in next years capital programme to meet the areas of demand 

for additional places. 

 

It is currently proposed that a paper reflecting the demographics within the county will be 

brought to the May School’s Forum meeting. 

 

3. Cheltenham Secondary School 

 

Since 2007 there has been an increase in birth rates which has, in part, resulted in a 

sustained growth in demand for school places.  This, coupled with additional pupil yield from 

strategic and non strategic housing, has resulted in the significant increase in demand for 

primary school places year on year in Cheltenham.  Since 2011 this rising demand has been 

met by working collaboratively with schools in the primary sector, and more recently with 

secondary schools to provide additional capacity as these pupils move into the secondary 

sector.  The latest data shows the pressure on both primary and secondary school places is 

concentrated in the southern area of Cheltenham. 

 
While we have managed to provide some additional capacity at existing secondary schools it 

is not feasible to adopt this approach to meet the identified future demand of between 6-8 

forms of entry (1200 places) in full as there would be a shortfall of at least 3-4 forms of entry 

unallocated with no flexibility going forward to cater for any unidentified need e.g. new 

housing.   Consequently we have recently commenced a competition to find a sponsor for a 

new 900 place (6 forms of entry) Secondary School which will meet the majority of the 

demand.  We will also need to be working with existing secondary schools to see how they 

could support us in meeting the demand from 2019 onwards.  It is currently anticipated that a 

sponsor will be appointed by Summer 2018 with a view to establishing the new school 

provision from September 2019.  Further details can be found on the dedicated webpage: 

School places in Cheltenham - Gloucestershire County Council 

 

The preferred location for the new school is in the southern area of the borough where the 

greatest demand is.  We are currently pursuing the allocation of a site in the Leckhampton 

area in the emerging Cheltenham Borough Local Plan to accommodate the new school. 

 

In light of the absence of a potential government funded free school (see below) we have 

had to secure the funding for the new school through combining available basic need funding 

and internal borrowing.  The overall capital cost will be offset through securing further 

Section 106 contributions from housing developments within the area. 

 

Page 12

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-admissions/school-places-in-cheltenham/


 

4. New Free School Bids 

 

There has been a delay in the announcement by the government as to when the next round 

of centrally funded free school will be.  It was anticipated that Wave 13 would originally be 

announced in Spring 2017.  It is still expected that there will be a further round of bids, 

although at a reduced level, but there is no clear timescale for this or the criteria for 

assessing new proposals. 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Schools 
Partnership consultation 

Your details  

Thank you for taking the time to respond to this important consultation.  
 
The purpose of this consultation document is to seek the views of headteachers and governors 
on the proposal to establish a county-wide partnership to improve educational outcomes for all 
children and young people in Gloucestershire. Subject to the response to the consultation, it is 
proposed that a Gloucestershire Schools Partnership should be established on a pilot basis from 
April 2018. If the pilot is successful, and there is continued support from headteachers, principals 
and governors, the partnership would be formally launched in September 2018. 

Your survey responses will be treated in confidence and you will not be individually identified. 
However, we are asking you to provide us with your name, school and role so that we can keep 
track of who has replied.  

 

Name      
 

School      
 

Role      
 

Introduction  

 In the autumn of 2017 Isos Partnership was invited by the Gloucestershire headteachers 
associations and the local authority to work with schools and partners across the county to 
explore the appetite for, and feasibility of, establishing a county-wide strategic partnership. A 
steering group comprising the chairs of GAPH, GASH and GASSH, the chair of Schools Forum 
and the local authority has overseen the work. 
 
The consultation is sent to all headteachers and governors in Gloucestershire on behalf of the 
steering group. It asks respondents to comment on:  

 

• Whether to establish a Gloucestershire Schools Partnership 

• The Principles underpinning a partnership 

• The functions of the partnership 

• The initial activity of the partnership 

• The membership and governance structure 

• Funding the partnership 

• Timescales for implementation 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



At key points in the consultation respondents can access more information, should they wish to 
do so. 

Would you like to read more about the background to this consultation?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Background to the consultation  

 In the summer 2017 Gloucestershire Local Authority became interested in the possibility of 
establishing a local schools’ partnership in the county. This was prompted, initially, by 
discussions with the Regional Schools Commissioner for the South West and a growing 
awareness of some of the models for partnership working that were being established in other 
areas across the region. Gloucestershire local authority was curious about how some of the 
principles and benefits of partnership working, often established in smaller metropolitan areas, 
might be translated to a large county. 
 
Having taken initial soundings with headteachers and governors, Gloucestershire local authority 
invited Isos Partnership to undertake a short exploration of the opportunities and challenges 
associated with setting up a local schools partnership and established a steering group of 
headteachers and governors to oversee this work. The steering group comprised the chairs of 
GAPH, GASH and GASSH, the chair of Schools Forum and the local authority. This consultation 
presents the findings of the project and is sent to all headteachers and governors in 
Gloucestershire on behalf of the steering group. 
 
In carrying out this research, Isos Partnership has investigated a range of different approaches to 
partnership working in other local areas; has conducted around 30 individual telephone 
interviews with headteachers, governors, MAT chief executives, and other partners; has led 
workshops for heads, governors and the chairs of the primary partnerships; and has presented at 
GAPH and GASH meetings and at the annual education conference. The evidence compiled 
through these engagements forms the basis for this consultation. 
  

Proposal to establish a Gloucestershire Schools 
Partnership  

A majority of those in Gloucestershire consulted and engaged by Isos were broadly in favour of 
the concept of a local schools’ partnership. There was a recognition by many that the increasing 
risk of isolation among schools, the changes to accountability, governance and curriculum, and 
the increasing financial pressure on schools and the local authority alike made a strong case for 
trying to work in a different way. Those headteachers and partners in Gloucestershire who 
advocated most strongly for the establishment of a local partnership suggested that there was a 
need for more strategic approach across the county to:  

 

• Identifying shared problems and finding solutions to them 

• Releasing the capacity and expertise for school to school support 

• Enabling schools to identify and address areas for development. 

Page 16



However, although the majority of those consulted appreciated and understood the need for a 
local schools’ partnership, they were also concerned about the challenges associated with 
establishing such a body. For some the perceived challenges outweighed the positives. A very 
small minority of those consulted were strongly opposed to the idea of establishing a local 
partnership. The chief concerns expressed by respondents were:  

 

• The limited time and capacity of headteachers to lead the partnership 

• The lack of available funding in the system 

• The risk of duplication in an already busy landscape 

• Schools not wanting to see an added layer of accountability 

• The challenge of getting engagement and commitment from all schools. 

These concerns are very real and need to be addressed if the partnership is to be sustainable 
and effective. It is hoped that the way in which the partnership is formed, its principles, purpose, 
governance and structure, set out in the rest of this consultation document, will mitigate many of 
these risks. 
 
Would you like to read more about schools partnerships in other areas of the country and 
the case for a partnership in Gloucestershire?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Further information on local schools’ partnerships  

 The recently published report "Optimism of the will: the development of local area-based 
education partnerships. A thinkpiece", written by Christine Gilbert for the IOE London Centre for 
Leadership in Learning, sheds light on a growing movement across the country which is seeing 
the creation of a wide range of local strategic education partnerships. The introduction to the 
report states: 
 
"Sometimes led by local authorities, sometimes by schools, these area-based partnerships want 
to minimise the dangers of fragmentation and isolation, not by gathering together for comfort but 
by generating energy and purpose to create a better local education system. At their best, they 
assume responsibility for strategic oversight of education in a local area and can act as an 
engine of improvement, brokering connections and initiatives across schools." 
 
The report produced by Isos Partnership for the Local Government Association "Enabling school 
improvement: research into the role of LAs in supporting local school improvement systems" also 
drew attention to the important of local strategic partnerships. The report states: 
 
"In many of the systems we visited, the strategic partnership that existed between the LA and 
local schools had become the fulcrum around which their current school improvement offer 
revolved. The importance of these partnerships, where they existed, was clear: they provided the 
strategic structure around which schools and the LA could jointly form the vision for local school 
improvement; they provided a sense of strategic cohesion which mitigated against the risks of 
fragmentation; and they were providing the opportunities for local school improvement through 
commissioning, brokering, and evaluating support." 

Page 17



 
In working with Gloucestershire, Isos has identified at least 25 schools partnerships established 
in a wide variety of local areas across England. While the rationale and impetus for establishing 
these partnerships naturally differs from area to area, a number of recurring themes are apparent 
as to why schools and their partners are mobilising in this way. 
 
The first key theme is one of local identity. In many areas in which partnerships have been 
established schools spoke very strongly about the importance of maintaining a sense of local 
context, of continuing to engage with a local family of schools, to have a way to address issues 
which span more than one school population and being able to counter the risk of fragmentation 
and isolation which goes hand-in-hand with an increasingly diverse and devolved education 
landscape. 
 
The second theme is strategic oversight. Schools and their partners felt that in a more diverse 
and multi-layered education system it was important that there should continue to be a place 
where strategic discussions about the priorities and challenges for education across an area 
could take place. In many examples, this was about headteachers and governors making a 
reality, locally, of the concept of system leadership. It was also, in some cases, a way of locally 
elected members continuing to play a strategic role in the education system. 
 
Finally, partnerships are borne of the recognition that schools are stronger when they work 
together. There are a number of live challenges facing schools, from inclusion to funding, 
accountability to curriculum. The local schools’ partnerships are frequently based on the premise 
that it is possible and desirable for schools to work together differently to address some of these 
challenges in a more creative, networked and intelligent way. Again, quoting from Christine 
Gilbert’s report "They can enhance the professional and social capital of teachers, and they can 
deepen motivation, learning and achievement". 
  

Proposal to establish a Gloucestershire Schools 
Partnership  

There are inevitably challenges associated with establishing a local schools’ partnership. 
However, the majority of headteachers and governors in Gloucestershire who have engaged in 
this work to date believe that the potential benefits - of finding new ways to work together to 
support better outcomes for all children and young people across the county - outweigh these 
challenges. We also recognise that it is difficult to respond concretely to a proposition which 
remains, at present, more abstract than real. This is why we are proposing that a schools-led 
partnership is piloted over the summer term with a view to launching the partnership officially in 
September 2018. At this stage we are asking all headteachers and governors in Gloucestershire 
to indicate whether, in principle, they support this proposal. 
  

Do you support the idea of establishing a local schools’ partnership in Gloucestershire? * 

 

   Yes 

   No 

Do you support the proposition that the partnership is piloted in the summer term 2018 
and, if the pilot is successful, is launched officially in September 2018?  

 

Page 18



   Yes 

   No 

  

Please add any comments that will help us to understand your answer  

 

  

The principles underpinning a Gloucestershire 
Schools Partnership  

 It is important that in setting up a partnership we are very clear from the outset what the purpose 
of the partnership will be, and how schools and other partners will work together to achieve this 
purpose. The underlying principles of the partnership provide a way to communicate these 
aspirations. The following draft principles have been developed in response to inputs from 
headteachers, governors and other partners as to how they would want the partnership to 
operate. The proposed principles for the partnership are:  

 

• The partnership will support the progress and achievement of all children and young 
people in Gloucestershire  

• Membership will be open to all schools, irrespective of type, and all schools will be 
treated equally  

• The partnership will be led by headteachers, with the support of key strategic partners – 
the local authority, governors, the Diocese and the RSC  

• The partnership will be committed to releasing the capacity and expertise in the system to 
support schools, and recognising that all schools can have something to offer and have 
something to learn  

• The partnership will provide a non-punitive place for identifying areas for improvement, 
and doing something about them  

• The partnership will be focused on action, evidence based, and driven by impact  

Do these principles provide a good basis on which to establish the partnership?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

  

Is there anything in the partnership principles that you would like to add, change or 
delete?  

 

  

Page 19



The proposed functions of the partnership  

 Schools-led partnerships, which have developed across the country, are carrying out a wide 
range of different functions. Isos used these as a basis for engaging headteachers and other 
partners in Gloucestershire on the purpose and activity of a schools-led partnership in the 
county. 

Would you like to read more about how partnership functions have developed in other 
areas and views from headteachers and other partners about what is required in 
Gloucestershire?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Partnership functions continued  

 In Christine Gilbert’s most recent think piece on The Development of Local Area-Based 
Education Partnerships, she emphasises this idea that local area-based education partnerships 
are becoming an increasingly important way of developing a schools-led system. They are 
proving effective in making connections between schools to drive collaboration and school-to-
school improvement. This can take a variety of forms, from encouraging a collaborative culture of 
peer review to providing a point of contact for commissioning and brokering school improvement 
services. These partnerships are a way to develop a self-sustaining system of improvement, 
leveraging existing expertise and sharing solutions to common problems. 
 
Partnerships can be formal structures where statutory services are commissioned by the local 
authority and school improvement and business support services can be brokered. Partnerships 
can also be less formal with no trading responsibilities. These partnerships organised less 
formally tend to agree to work together across a locality, sharing knowledge, intelligence and 
providing constructive challenge. 
 
Through their engagement with heads, governors and partners, Isos Partnership have identified 
a number of partnership functions that would make a significant contribution in Gloucestershire. 
There was clear agreement on the need for Gloucestershire schools to adopt a more strategic 
approach to understanding the challenges facing the system and developing clear priorities for 
improvement. Stakeholders clearly outlined how a joined-up approach could help schools to 
identify shared problems and find solutions to them in an efficient way. 
 
Stakeholders also felt that a partnership could help with releasing the capacity and expertise for 
school-to-school support by increasing the range of schools engaged in providing support, 
creating a process for quality assuring the offer and holding the system to account for the 
outcomes delivered. It was agreed that the outputs from this greater join-up would enable 
schools to identify and address areas for development in a way that was really in-tune to the 
needs of the local area. 
 
Finally, many of those consulted felt that there was a need to get on the front foot in terms of 
improvement – to have a system for identifying areas for improvement in individual schools 
before they became entrenched and before they began to impact on outcomes for children and 
young people. There was little appetite for a new layer of top-down accountability that duplicates 
the statutory responsibilities of MATs, the LA, Ofsted and the RSC. But there was enthusiasm for 
developing a more trusting, collaborative and open approach to acknowledging individual 

Page 20



challenges and seeking support in addressing them. As described in Christine Gilbert’s 
thinkpiece, "The majority of these partnerships are voluntarily taking responsibility for the 
collective performance of schools in an area. This is not top-down accountability with a statutory 
base in individual schools, trusts or local authorities, it is lateral shared responsibility rooted in 
ambitious local vision and professional networks." 
  

The proposed functions of the partnership  

Based on the views of headteachers and partners gathered by Isos, we are proposing that the 
partnership is tasked with carrying out three functions on behalf of all schools in Gloucestershire:  

Setting the strategic direction: the partnership could be used to set a county-wide 
strategic vision by identifying the most pressing priorities. The partnership would 
commission task and finish groups to come up with solutions to these and work with local 
and other partnerships to see through the actions arising.  

Building capacity for school-to-school support: a directory of quality-assured support 
could be developed so that expertise could be identified and efficiently deployed across 
schools in Gloucestershire. The partnership, as part of this, could also establish learning 
hubs to release expertise and build capacity when faced with common problems. The 
school-led system as constructed by the partnership would also maximise the impact of the 
collective teaching school and NLE offer.  

Addressing areas for improvement: the partnership could be responsible for overseeing a 
system of cluster-based peer reviews and for earlier identification of schools at risk using 
data and shared soft intelligence. The partnership could develop bespoke support 
packages, frequently reviewing the effectiveness of this support.  

 

Do you agree with the proposal that Gloucestershire Schools Partnership would have the 
three main functions of setting the strategic direction, releasing capacity and expertise for 
school-to-school support, and supporting schools to identify and address areas for 
improvement?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

 Please provide any further information that would help us to understand your answer.  

 

  

Initial activity of the partnership  

  

Page 21



Through the consultation conducted by Isos Partnership, there was strong feedback from primary 
and secondary schools that the partnership required a core activity that could be easily defined 
and communicated. Peer review was suggested by some as a key initial activity which could 
provide the engine for the partnership’s approach to school improvement. 
 
In the primary sector, at least one of the existing primary partnerships already has a peer review 
programme in place and a majority of primary partnership chairs have indicated their willingness 
and enthusiasm to develop cluster-based peer review in future. It is proposed that we should 
learn from what is already working in Gloucestershire, and elsewhere, to develop a model of peer 
review that might be trialled more widely. 
 
In the secondary sector, there was enthusiasm among some schools for carrying out peer review 
in clusters of contextually similar schools, rather than on a geographical basis, which would avoid 
some of the tensions that arise when schools are in direct competition.  Reviews would not be an 
imitation inspection. They would be designed to be inclusive and constructive but would involve a 
strong element of professional challenge to ensure they are effective rather than comfortable. It 
would be the responsibility of the partnership, in consultation with heads, to develop a review 
framework (or frameworks) and to provide training for those carrying out the reviews to ensure 
that they are of high quality. 
  

Would you like to read more about approaches to peer review and peer challenge in other 
areas of the country?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Initial activity - more about peer review  

 Schools partnerships that encourage collaborative working require a greater level of intelligence 
sharing and an open working relationship. Many partnerships use peer review as a way to drive 
this. 
 
Peer review organised through existing primary partnerships or through secondary clusters of 
similar schools would be an effective mechanism to engage schools in a meaningful dialogue 
with each other about areas of strength and opportunities for improvement. Once greater local 
intelligence has been built through peer reviews, it would be much easier to identify the expertise 
and capacity in the local area. 
 
The work being done by Challenge Partners nationally is a good example of this. It seeks to 
develop a school-led system based on peer review. Schools are encouraged to sign up to their 
model and are then partnered with other schools across the country with whom they carry out 
reciprocal peer reviews. One of the benefits of this model is that schools are not in direct 
competition with the schools by which they are being reviewed which encourages open and 
constructive challenge. Schools can specify particular areas on which they wish the reviewer to 
focus. This can be an effective way of providing schools with professional dialogue and a 
network for support.  
 
An alternative national peer review programme is EDT School Partnership Programme (SPP), 
which is a cluster-based approach to school improvement currently working with over 500 
schools across England. SPP is a peer review model that builds capacity and capability across 
clusters so they can gradually take more responsibility for their own development and maturity, 

Page 22



and lead their own improvement. The vision is that over time local areas will own the SPP model, 
and continue to develop it so it has impact locally.  
 
Gilbert’s think piece on partnerships points to more area-specific examples of peer review. She 
cites the Tower Hamlets’ Education Partnership as one example of this. The partnership invited 
all its schools to consider a range of peer review models and then part-funded clusters of schools 
to trial these. The output of the reviews are particularly focused on a school’s development, 
rather than carrying out an imitation Ofsted inspection, and therefore provide a good basis for 
developing a local school to school support system. 
 
The Essex Schools-Led Improvement System partnership is another model worth exploring. In 
Essex existing local partnerships conduct framework-based peer reviews, based on EDT's SPP 
model, to share expertise across schools. Essex LA provided pump-prime funding and organised 
15 starter partnerships. The funding paid for EDT to train the partnerships in their SPP model of 
peer review. Having established the local clusters, the partnership is now developing four 
"quadrants" across the county whose role is to use the learning from peer reviews to develop 
CPD and broker further support from other partnerships. In turn, the quadrants will feed into a 
strategic county-wide board which will use the information from peer review to identify key 
challenges in the county. 
  

Initial activity of the partnership  

It is suggested that every school that is a member of the partnership would be entitled to a 1 day 
peer review carried out by 3 school leaders (either headteachers or deputy heads) every year. If 
every school that was a member of the partnership committed to providing 1.5 headteacher days 
and 1.5 deputy headteacher days a year to conducting peer reviews in other schools that would 
provide the cadre of reviewers necessary to make the programme work. Heads and deputies 
would also need to commit to a half-day training at the outset of the programme to ensure that 
the peer reviews are of high quality and follow a consistent framework and format. 
 
We suggest that peer review is trialled as the central and initial activity in the partnership. Peer 
review could then act as the engine for school improvement. It would generate intelligence on 
shared challenges, intelligence on capacity and strengths and individual school action plans. This 
in turn could build strategic vision, priorities for action, a register or directory of support and 
intelligent brokerage. The particular model of peer review to be used in Gloucestershire is 
something that that partnership board could determine, based on a period of piloting different 
options. Gloucestershire could choose to adopt one of the nationally available models or develop 
a more bespoke local model based on work that has been initiated in some of the primary 
partnerships. Alternatively, Gloucestershire could establish some principles and standards for 
peer review and allow individual schools a choice in opting for an approach which meets those 
quality criteria. 
  

Do you agree that the Gloucestershire Schools Partnership could be organised around 
peer review as the engine for improvement?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

  

Page 23



Do you agree that peer reviews should be organised through local primary partnerships 
and secondary clusters of similar schools and the learning generated from these peer 
reviews would then go towards setting a wider, collective strategy? 

 

   Yes 

   No 

Would you be happy for the outputs from the peer review of your school to be shared 
appropriately with the partnership board to inform understanding about capacity and 
areas for development in Gloucestershire schools?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Would you be willing to give some of your time and that of other members of your 
leadership team to conducting peer reviews of other schools? We currently anticipate this 
might be 3 days per school per year (split between the head teacher and deputy)  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Do you have a preference for a particular model or approach to peer review? If so, please 
explain below.  

 

  
 
 
 

  

Please provide any further comment or information that would help us to understand your 
answers above.  

 

  

The proposed membership and governance 
structure  

  

Page 24



It is proposed that the option to become a member of the partnership would be open to any state 
school in Gloucestershire. Schools would need the agreement of their governing bodies to 
become members and would sign a membership agreement. The membership agreement would 
set out the rights and benefits associated with membership of the partnership, as well as some 
responsibilities and agreed ways of working. It is proposed that the membership agreement 
would cover:  

 

• The right to vote for the partnership board 

• The right to vote on key decisions at the annual general meeting 

• Ways of working between the partnership and member schools, based on the partnership 
principles 

• Key benefits such as the opportunities to engage in school to school support, take part in 
learning hubs, and to receive regular and high-quality information about the partnership’s 
activities 

• Agreement to take part in regular peer review, both as a reviewer and as the beneficiary 
of a review 

• Agreement to share the outcomes of peer review with the partnership 

• Agreement to share data with the partnership 

Over time, it is hoped that the benefits of membership would develop and be shaped by the 
preferences of schools. However, as a starting point we propose that the initial benefits of being 
a member of the partnership would be:  

 

• Receiving a 1-day high quality peer review, carried out by 3 school leaders, once a year. 

• Having access to the quality assured directory of school to school support, a consistent 
pricing framework for accessing support, and the help of a broker in finding the right 
support. 

• Regular high-quality communications from the partnership about priorities based on 
findings from the peer review programme, actions and activity in schools, including 
shared practical resources. 

• Opportunities to take-part in discounted CPD or other development activities run through 
the partnership. 

The Gloucestershire Schools Partnership would be led by a board which would be elected 
through the relevant phase associations. These would be unpaid posts. They would be 
responsible for setting the strategic direction of the partnership, ensuring that the partnership 
delivered on its ambitions and responsibilities, and overseeing the partnership’s programme of 
work. In order to have a board up and running for an April 2018 pilot it may not be possible to 
carry out elections sufficiently quickly. In that case a shadow board will be appointed by the 
steering group, and the full board elected for a September 2018 launch. The board would meet 
three times a year. It is proposed that the board comprises:  

 

• One independent chair – appointed by the members of the board 

• Two secondary school representatives (one head and one governor)– elected by a vote 
from GASH 

Page 25



• Two primary school representatives (one head and one governor)– elected by a vote 
from GAPH 

• Two special school representatives (one head and one governor) – elected by a vote 
from GASSH 

• One representative from teaching schools in Gloucestershire – elected by 
Gloucestershire TSAs 

• Two local authority representative – appointed by the LA 

• One diocesan representative – appointed by the Diocese 

It is also proposed that there are separate primary and secondary sub-committees which sit 
below the overall board. The purpose of these sub-committees would be to oversee phase-
specific strategies and activities, as well as link the partnership to the existing primary 
partnerships, to Adfecto and to GAPH / GASH. It is proposed that the Primary sub-committee is 
made up of the chairs of the 7 primary partnerships and that the secondary sub-committee is 
made up of 5 headteachers nominated by GASH. 
  

Do you agree that membership should be open to all schools in Gloucestershire and 
governed by a membership agreement?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Please provide us with any comments you have on the content of a membership 
agreement  

 

  

Do you agree with the proposed make-up of the board, with a mix of elected and 
appointed posts?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Do you agree with the proposal for primary and secondary sub-committees and their 
make-up?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Please provide us with any further comments or information that would help us to 
understand your answers above  

 

Page 26



  

Funding the partnership  

 In order to deliver the functions described above, the partnership will need some dedicated 
resource to:  

 

• Manage the peer review programme 

• Follow through actions agreed by the board 

• Carry out data analysis 

• Broker school to school support 

• Organise learning hubs and task and finish groups 

• Communicate the decisions and activity of the partnership 

• Ensure the smooth running of meetings 

However, there is no ‘new’ money to direct towards the establishment of the partnership, so any 
funding will need to be found from within existing resources. The partnership will therefore need 
to operate a mixed funding model with some contribution from the LA and contributions from 
schools that are members. There may be the opportunity to apply for time-limited funding from 
Schools Forum to get the partnership off the ground. Over time, the partnership may be 
successful in attracting funding through SSIF or EEF bids which could supplement its programme 
of activity, and drawing on ‘in-kind’ resources available through TSAs and NLEs. 
 
In order to get the partnership established it is proposed that funding is found for one full-time 
post for one year. This is likely to be around £75,000. A broad breakdown of how this post might 
be deployed is set out below: 
   

Task Days 

Data analysis 6 

Organising the peer review programme 75 

Developing and maintaining school to school support directory 24 

Brokering school to school support 30 

Overseeing task and finish groups 20 

Commissioning other developmental activity 20 

Preparing for meetings 12 

Communications 12 

 
 
The concept behind the partnership is that it will be led by schools, for schools. It will therefore be 
for the partnership board to work through the detailed arrangements of how the partnership will 
operate once it has been established. However, if you would you like to read a more detailed 
illustration of how the partnership might operate day to day please answer 'yes' below.  

 

   Yes 

Page 27



   No 

Day to day working of the partnership  

 Setting the strategic direction 

The partnership board, and the primary and secondary sub-groups, would meet 6 times a year. 
At every other meeting (once a term) the board and sub-groups would consider the latest data 
available – for example the results of Ofsted inspections in the last term, key stage data where 
relevant (once a year), data on exclusions and hard to place pupils, information about school 
staffing and leadership, and the feedback from the programme of peer review. Based on an 
analysis of this key data the board will identify the most pressing education challenges across the 
county and commission appropriate action to address these. The partnership could:  

 

• set up a task and finish group comprising a small number of school leaders to investigate 
an issue more deeply and to propose solutions. 

• decide to make an application for grant funding (for example a SSIF bid) to set up a 
dedicated programme of support to address the issue identified. 

• use connections through the Teaching School network to influence the nature and 
content of CPD being delivered.  

Building capacity for school to school support 

A key task for the partnership would be to create a quality assured directory of schools with the 
ability to support other schools. The partnership would draw on the existing capacity of NLEs and 
TSAs, but would also actively engage a much wider group of schools in supporting each other. It 
is hoped that the peer review programme would enable this by providing quality assured 
feedback from the reviewers on areas of strength and innovation individual schools, that could be 
added to the county-wide directory. 
  
The partnership would be responsible for putting in place a pricing framework for accessing 
school to school support, and could provide a brokerage function for schools in accessing the 
right support. Any schools receiving or providing support through the framework would commit to 
giving feedback on the process and outcomes, so that the strength of the offer could be 
continuously improved. 
  
The partnership might also consider seeking funding to establish learning hubs. These would be 
opportunities to bring teachers together for peer to peer learning and planning on topics of 
mutual interest. In other local areas, individual schools or groups of schools have bid for time-
limited funding to run and host the learning hub, and to develop the outputs of the learning into a 
form that can be easily shared with a wider group of schools. 
  
Addressing areas for improvement 

Every school would receive a 1-day peer review from 3 school leaders every year. This should 
provide a strong professional input into areas for development, and corresponding strengths, to 
inform action planning. Beyond this, the partnership should become a safe place for schools to 
come with concerns and find practical and relevant advice:  

 

Page 28



• Schools with an area of concern might approach their primary or secondary 
representative. At the relevant sub-group meeting, these concerns would be discussed 
with the school and other partners, and a support plan would be agreed drawing on the 
directory of school to school support. This might involve a number of schools working 
together if they were facing similar challenges. 

• The sub-groups or the strategic board could also directly approach individual schools if 
the data or other intelligence suggests there may be causes for concern and invite those 
schools to take part in an earlier or more intensive peer review, or to engage in a 
discussion about the support that they would find helpful. This discussion would be 
entirely voluntary, and does not replace the statutory accountability mechanisms that 
otherwise exist. 

Funding the partnership  

Do you agree that the partnership will need some dedicated resource to carry out its 
functions and that initially this should be capped at 1 FTE post?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Do you agree in principle that the partnership should be funded by a mix of school and 
local authority contributions?  

 

   Yes 

   No 

What is the range of school-based contribution to the working of the partnership that you 
would, in principle, be willing to make?  

 

Please indicate roughly how much per annum you would, in principle, be willing to 
contribute to the partnership     

  

  

Please add any further comments that will help us understand your answers about 
funding the partnership  

 

  
 
 
 

Page 29



Timescales for implementation  

Following this consultation, if there is sufficient support for the concept, it is proposed that we use 
the summer term as a period for developing the partnership’s ways of working and testing some 
key principles and functions. We would aim to hold two partnership board meetings, at the 
beginning and the end of the summer term, and use the period between these to make progress 
on some key areas such as identifying strategic priorities, developing a membership agreement, 
and initiating the programme of cluster-based peer review. This is a challenging and ambitious 
timeline but it is necessary to move quickly if the partnership is to demonstrate its capacity to add 
value. A rough timetable of activity is suggested below: 
 
March – consultation with all heads and governors 
April – establish a shadow board  
April – first partnership board meeting – develop members agreement and strategic priorities 
May – appoint someone to run the partnership, on secondment  
May – develop peer review methodology and training and set up first task and finish group 
May / June – roll out peer review pilot and develop learning from it 
July – second partnership board meeting 

Do you agree with the proposed timeline of activity for April 2018 to July 2018  

 

   Yes 

   No 

Please let us know if there are any changes you would propose for the partnership's 
priority actions in the pilot phase (April - July 2018)  

 

  
 
 
 

 

Page 30


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Action sheet 11 January 2018

	6 Capital
	7 Gloucestershire Schools Partnership Consultation

